
 1 

Agenda – Amended 7/8/2020 
Town of Indialantic 

Regular Meeting of the Town Council 
Wednesday, July 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903 
 

NOTICE: This meeting will not be held at Town Hall. This meeting will be held utilizing 
Communications Media Technology in accordance with Governor DeSantis’ Executive 
Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09. Those wishing to attend the 

meeting are encouraged to join the meeting online using the Zoom Webinar platform 
or by telephone.  

 
To access the meeting, please click the link below:  
 
https://zoom.us/j/91283957702?pwd=UHJMRHl2NlQxQjdJUCtvU2Q2dmllUT09 
Password: 397648 
  
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +13126266799,,91283957702#,,,,0#,,397648#  or 
+16465588656,,91283957702#,,,,0#,,397648#  
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 669 900 
9128  or +1 253 215 8782  
 
    Webinar ID: 912 8395 7702 
    Password: 397648 
    International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/ahSNbVqIS 
  
Instructions on how to join a Zoom meeting: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-
Joining-a-Meeting\ 
 
Public Comments, prior to the meeting, can be submitted: 
By drop box until 2:00 p.m., July 8, 2020. Deposit comments in the drop box located at rear entrance 
of Town Hall, 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903. 
By email until 2:00 p.m., July 8, 2020: townhall@indialantic.com. Write ‘Public Comments 7-8-2020’ 
in the subject line. 
 
Public Comments, during the meeting, (3 minutes per speaker): 
Click on “Raise Hand” button to speak. The public will be joining the meeting by audio only (no video). 
At the appropriate time, a member of the public can indicate that he/she would like to offer a public 
comment by (1) Pressing the “Raise Hand” button in Zoom; or (2) dialing *9 if calling in on a 
telephone line.  

https://zoom.us/j/91283957702?pwd=UHJMRHl2NlQxQjdJUCtvU2Q2dmllUT09
https://zoom.us/u/ahSNbVqIS
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting/
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting/
mailto:townhall@indialantic.com


 2 

 
Technical Issues: If staff or councilmembers experience technical issues the meeting will be 
temporarily halted until the issues are resolved; if the issue cannot be resolved, the meeting will be 
adjourned. 
 

A. Call to Order: 
 

Honorable Dave Berkman, Mayor 
Honorable Stu Glass, Deputy Mayor 
Honorable Simon Kemp, Councilmember 
Honorable Julie McKnight, Councilmember 
Honorable Doug Wright, Councilmember 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance: 

 
2. Changes to Agenda: 

 
3. Presentations and Proclamations:  

 Waste Management will accept a proclamation signed June 10, 2020. Rescheduled due 
to COVID-19 social distancing precautions 

 
4. Public Comments, Non-agenda items:  

Note: Persons wishing to address the Town Council on a matter not listed on the agenda may 
speak at this time.  
Speakers must provide their name and address and direct their comments to the Mayor and 
not to the members of the audience. Please observe the 3-minute time limit and speak only 
after being recognized by the Mayor.  

 
5. Public Announcements: 

 There are openings on the Code Enforcement Board and the Civil Service Board.  

 Candidate qualifying packets are ready for pick-up at Town Hall. Persons interested in 
running for Mayor, Town Council Seat #2, and Town Council Seat #4 in the November 
3, 2020 election should contact the Town Clerk. The qualifying period begins at noon 
on August 6 and ends at noon on August 13, 2020.  

 

B. Consent Agenda: 
 

1. Approve Council Meeting Minutes for June 10, 2020 
2. Approve Board and Committee Appointments/Reappointments: 

a) Board of Adjustment – Appoint Michael Hill; Reappoint Safvat Kalaghchy 
b) Zoning and Planning Board – Reappoint Christopher Mullen 

3. Declare town vehicle 1999 Dodge Ram as surplus and authorize disposal 
4. Adopt Resolution No. 09-2020 Budget Adjustment #2 for FY 2019-2020 



 3 

5. Authorize Town Manager to send letter to FDOT encouraging reducing the speed limit to 35 
mph south of Eleventh Avenue 

 

C. Ordinances and Public Hearings: 
 

1. Ordinance 2020-07 Second/Final Reading (Re: Clarifying term of office for elected officials): 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida, Relating To The Time A 
Councilmember Takes Office; Amending Section 2.03, Town Charter; Making Findings; Providing For A 
Referendum Election And Ballot Language; Amending The Town Charter To Provide When Town 
Council Members, Including But Not Limited To The Mayor, Take Office After An Election And To 
Clarify The Duration Of A Council Member’s Term; Providing For Coordination With The Supervisor Of 
Elections; Providing A Severability Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 
 

 
2. Ordinance 2020-03 First Reading (Proposed small scale amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan future land use maps for property located at 100 Tampa Avenue): 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Florida; Making Findings; Amending The Town Of 
Indialantic Comprehensive Plan Revising The Future Land Use Map On Lots 32 And 33 Block 95, 
Section D, Indialantic By The Sea, According To The Plat Thereof, As Recorded In Plat Book 3, Page 93, 
Public Records Of Brevard County, Florida, From Residential Low (0 To 4 Units/Acre) To Residential 
Medium (>4 To 15 Units/Acre); Amending Section 11-6, Town Code Of Ordinances To Reflect 
Adoption Of The Proposed  Plan Amendment; Providing For Transmittal Of The Proposed Amendment 
To The State Land Planning Agency; Providing For Inclusion Of Ordinance And Revised Future Land 
Use Map In The Comprehensive Plan; Providing For Severability, Interpretation, And Codification; 
Providing An Effective Date.   This item is removed from the agenda. Application was withdrawn by 
the applicant on 7/7/2020. This hearing will not be continued and ordinance will not be considered 
for adoption. 

 
3. Ordinance 2020-04 First Reading (Proposed rezoning for property located at 100 Tampa 

Avenue): 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Florida; Making Findings; Amending The Official Zoning 
Map By Rezoning Real Property Located On Lots 32 And 33, Block 95, Section D, Indialantic By The 
Sea, Plat Book 3, Page 93, Public Records Of Brevard County, Florida, From R-1-A (Single-Family 
Residence) To R-3 (Multi-Family Residence); Providing That This Ordinance Does Not Create Any 
Vested Rights; Providing For Failure To Adhere To The Provisions Of This Ordinance; Providing For 
Severability And Codification; And Providing An Effective Date. This item is removed from the 
agenda. Application was withdrawn by the applicant on 7/7/2020. This hearing will not be 
continued and ordinance will not be considered for adoption. 
 
 

4. Ordinance 2020-08 First Reading (Re: Declaring Emergencies): 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Emergencies; Making 
Findings; Creating Sections 10-100 Through 10-105, Article Vi., Chapter 10, Town Code Of Ordinances; 
Providing Definitions, Persons Authorized To Declare An Emergency, And Term Of Emergency 



 4 

Declaration; Setting Forth Emergency Powers; Providing Penalties And For Liberality Of Construction;    
Providing A Severability/Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 
 

5. Ordinance 2020-09 First Reading (Re: Paid parking rates): 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Parking; Making 
Findings; Amending Section 15-18.1 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, Relating To Rates Of 
Compensation For Parking In Designated Areas Of The Public Right-Of-Way Or Areas Adjacent To The 
Beach; Deleting The Requirement That Parking Meters May Be Coin Operated; Providing That Parking 
Meters May Be Mechanically Or Electronically Operated Or Operated By Pay-By-Phone System; 
Providing For Enforcement; Providing For Change Of Certain Rates By Resolution; Amending The 
Schedule Of Fines In Section 15-23 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, For Failure To Park Head In; 
Providing A Severability/ Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 
 

D. Unfinished Business: 
 

1. (Discussion/Action) COVID-19 
a) Emergency Ordinance 2020-10 (Re: Face coverings required in Town facilities. May be 

adopted by a two-thirds vote of the Council; no second reading required) 
An Emergency Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida, 
Requiring Face Coverings At All Indoor Town Facilities To Minimize The Spread Of 
Covid-19; Making Legislative Findings Of Emergency And Supporting The Wearing Of 
Face Coverings As An Effective Measure Against The Spread Of Covid-19; Providing For 
Face Covering Requirements; Providing For Exceptions; Providing For Penalties; 
Providing For Sunset; Providing For Severability, Non-Codification, And Effective Date. 
 

b) Emergency Ordinance 2020-11 (Re: Face coverings required in essential businesses; 
mask policy signage required for all businesses. May be adopted by a two-thirds vote of 
the Council; no second reading required) 
An Emergency Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida, 
Requiring All Businesses To Post Their Mask Policy At The Entry Of The Business To 
Advise Customers, Patrons, Employees, And Invitees Of Same Prior To Entering The 
Businesses; Requiring Customers, Patrons, Employees And Invitees Of “Essential” 
Businesses, As Defined Herein, To Wear Masks; Making Legislative Findings Of 
Emergency And Supporting The Wearing Of Face Coverings As An Effective Measure 
Against The Spread Of Covid-19; Providing For Exceptions; Providing For Penalties; 
Providing For Sunset; Providing For Severability, Conflicts And Effective Date. 
 

2. (Informational) Litter Ordinance (Casey) 
 

 

E. New Business: 

1. (Discussion/Action) Set Proposed Millage Rate and Public Hearing Dates for FY 2020-2021 

Budget Adoption 

2. (Discussion/Action) Request for Traffic Light at Watson/SR A1A  



 5 

 

F. Administrative Reports: 
 

1. Town Manager Report 
2. Town Attorney Report 

 

G. Council Reports: 
 

H. Adjourn: 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE:  PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON 

DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD, AGENCY, OR COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED 

AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, AFFECTED 

PERSONS MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 

TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE 

TOWN FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION INTO EVIDENCE OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR 

DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: PERSONS PLANNING TO ATTEND THE MEETING WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE MUST 

NOTIFY THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 321-723-2242 NO LATER THAN 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



Meeting Minutes 
Town of Indialantic 

Regular Meeting of the Town Council 
Wednesday, June 10, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903 

A. Call to Order:
A regular meeting of the Indialantic Town Council was called to order by Mayor Berkman on 
Wednesday, June 10, 2020 at 7:03 p.m. with the following members present: 

Honorable Dave Berkman, Mayor 
Honorable Stu Glass, Deputy Mayor 
Honorable Simon Kemp, Councilmember 
Honorable Julie McKnight, Councilmember 
Honorable Doug Wright, Councilmember 

Also present: 

Michael Casey, Town Manager 
Paul Gougelman, Town Attorney 
Rebekah Raddon, Town Clerk 
Michael Connor, Chief of Police 

1. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Berkman.

2. Changes to Agenda – The order of items under New Business was changed as follows: 1.
Beach Parking; 2. Beach Trash and Littering; 3. Vacant lot at Wavecrest/Fifth Ave; 4. Interlocal
Agreement with Brevard County for CARES Act funding.

3. Presentations and Proclamations: Deputy Mayor Glass read a proclamation recognizing the
Town’s appreciation of services provided by Waste Management/Harris Sanitation.

4. Public Comments, non-agenda items – None.

5. Mayor Berkman read the following Public Announcements:
• There are openings on the Code Enforcement Board and the Board of Adjustment.
• Town Hall will be closed on July 3rd in observance of Independence Day.

B. Consent Agenda:
1. Approve Council Meeting Minutes for May 13, 2020
2. Approve Board and Committee Appointments/Reappointments:

a) Zoning and Planning Board – Reappoint Les Hatter
b) Pension Board of Trustees/Police and Fire – Reappoint Bruce Bogert

3. Approve Solid Waste Rate Increase (0.33%)

Agenda item  B. 1



4. Approve Resolution No. 06-2020 Temporarily waiving certain provisions of the Town code
regarding signs and outdoor dining due to COVID-19

5. Approve Resolution No. 07-2020 Prohibiting single-use plastics and polystyrene products at
special events

6. Approve Resolution No. 08-2020 Forming a Playground Advisory Committee
7. Approve Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Town of Melbourne Beach for Fire

Dispatch Services

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember Wright, and vote unanimous to 
approve the consent agenda as written. Motion carried 5-0. 

C. Ordinances and Public Hearings:

1. Ordinance 2020-06 Second/Final Reading:

Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 
An Ordinance of the Town of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida, Relating to the Qualifying Date to 
Run for Town Council; Making Findings; Amending Section 2.02(4), Town Charter; Changing the Dates 
Prior to the Town Election to Qualify to Run for Town Council; Providing for 
Severability/Interpretation; Providing for Repeal of Ordinances and Resolutions Inconsistent 
Herewith; and Providing an Effective Date.  

There were no comments from the public. 

MOTION by Councilmember Kemp, seconded by Councilmember McKnight, and vote unanimous to 
adopt Ordinance No. 2020-06 on second/final reading. Motion carried 5-0. 

2. Ordinance 2020-07 First Reading:

Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida, Relating To The Time A 
Councilmember Takes Office; Amending Section 2.03, Town Charter; Making Findings; Providing For A 
Referendum Election And Ballot Language; Amending The Town Charter To Provide When Town 
Council Members, Including But Not Limited To The Mayor, Take Office After An Election And To 
Clarify The Duration Of A Council Member’s Term; Providing For Coordination With The Supervisor Of 
Elections; Providing A Severability Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

There were no comments from the public. 

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember McKnight, and vote unanimous to 
approve Ordinance No. 2020-07 on first reading. Motion carried 5-0. 

D. Unfinished Business:

1. Proposal for Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study



Mr. Casey explained that the cost for the proposed study is $71,810 which is significantly higher than 
anticipated. He added that currently, no grant funding is available and this would require increasing 
the mileage rate in the next fiscal year budget if Council decides to have the study conducted.  

MOTION by Councilmember Kemp, seconded by Councilmember Wright to include funds in the 
upcoming fiscal year budget to conduct the study.  

There was discussion regarding revenue shortages due to COVID-19. 

Brett Miller, 220 Cocoa Avenue, inquired if other vendors could be solicited to provide the study. 

Mayor Berkman called for a vote on the motion; MOTION FAILED 2-3; nay votes by Deputy Mayor 
Glass, Councilmember McKnight, and Councilmember Wright.  

Mayor Berkman suggested having the Town’s lobbyist look for funding for the study. 

E. New Business:

1. Beach Parking

Mayor Berkman spoke regarding the influx of beach visitors after the parking was reopened which 
lead to an increase in litter and trash accumulation. He asked if the council was interested in making 
changes such as limiting certain areas to permit-holders or residents only, or closing some areas for 
green space.  
Mr. Gougelman provided the pros and cons for several options, and advised the council to listen 
carefully to the town manager regarding a potential loss in revenue. Lengthy discussion ensued 
regarding increasing the hourly parking meter rates, increasing millage for the purpose of assigning 
two parking permit decals per household, closing or designating certain areas to permit-holders only, 
removing some coin-operated meters, and how changes might impact the Town’s budget.  
Loren Goldfarb, 320 Deland Avenue, provided input on beach parking and suggested the Town focus 
on increasing littering fines and enforcement.  
Paul Nevins, 1709 S. Miramar Avenue, thanked public works for their assistance in cleaning up a fish 
kill last year and thanked law enforcement for attending the meeting. He felt it was the Town’s 
responsibility to provide beach access and parking to visitors, and suggested the Town not limit 
visitors. 
Brett Miller, 220 Cocoa Avenue, commented on litter left by a large group of motorcyclists on a 
recent Saturday, and suggested that if council decides to limit certain parking areas, he recommends 
south of Eleventh Avenue and on Tampa Avenue.  

Mayor Berkman asked the Town manager to look into this further and bring a recommendation to 
the council next month regarding parking areas and increasing the parking meter fees.  

2. Beach Trash and Litter



Mayor Berkman asked to increase the fine for littering, which is currently $5.00. Police Chief Connor 
spoke regarding the Town’s cost for court fees related to littering and the potential use of a certified 
litter patrol person. 

MOTION by Mayor Berkman, seconded by Councilmember McKnight, to increase the fine for 
littering to the maximum allowable amount and post signage indicating same. Motion carried 
unanimously 5-0. 

Mr. Casey indicated an ordinance would have to be drafted to implement the increase. There was 
discussion regarding signage and an awareness campaign.  

3. Vacant Lot at Wavecrest/Fifth Avenue

Mayor Berkman gave background information on the property and said the owner inquired about 
developing the parcel. He asked if the council would consider creating a new “C-3” 
 zoning category to allow mixed commercial-residential use, or if the parcel should remain in its 
current state which is a crumbling, concrete slab surrounded by chain link fencing. He felt a 
restaurant wouldn’t be feasible unless the value of land dropped substantially and any other 
development wouldn’t be likely with the current zoning restrictions. Mr. Casey noted the property is 
currently zoned C-2 and indicated there are issues that would need to be addressed regarding the 
flood plain and coastal construction line.  
There was discussion regarding keeping the Town’s commercial district intact and concerns raised 
regarding density, resiliency, and changing the character of the Town. Mr. Gougelman cautioned that 
this discussion does not provide any sort of commitment or vested rights and developers are urged to 
meet with the town manager and town planner to discuss any proposed development, rather than 
speaking with the elected officials individually to avoid any issues with Sunshine law or ex-parte 
communication. Mr. Casey cautioned about the implications of “spot zoning.”   

Mayor Berkman said he would instruct the owner to contact Mr. Casey if they want to pursue 
development.  

Brett Miller, 220 Tampa Avenue, offered suggestions regarding mixed-use development design; 
further discussion ensued regarding parking.  

4. Interlocal Agreement with Brevard County for CARES Act funding

Mr. Casey briefly explained the agreement which is intended to provide reimbursement for certain 
COVID-19 expenditures.  



MOTION by Mayor Berkman, seconded by Deputy Mayor Glass, and vote unanimous to approve 
the Interlocal Agreement for CARES Act fundign. Motion carried 5-0. 

F. Administrative Reports:

1. Town Manager Report – Mr. Casey summarized his written report.
2. Town Attorney Report – None.

G. Council Reports:

Councilmember McKnight said she distributed the “Support Local” flyers and encouraged the council 
to take posters and offer them to any businesses she may have missed. There wasn’t an 
overwhelming response to the “Support Local” Facebook page but hopes people will continue sharing 
their personal experiences to increase awareness and help draw more customers to the local 
businesses in Indialantic. 

Mr. Casey stated the Witch Way 5K was cancelled but the Parks/Recreation/Beautification 
Committee expressed interest in helping local businesses. He noted the Long Dogger’s special event 
was also cancelled.  

H. Adjourn:

There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 

   _______________________________________ 

    Dave Berkman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk 



Agenda item  B. 2



Agenda item  B. 2





Agenda item  B. 2



Agenda item  B. 2



B. 3





B. 4



Agenda item B. 4







B. 5



Agenda item C. 1 



Agenda item C. 1









Agenda item C. 4



Agenda item C. 4

















Agenda item C. 5



Agenda item C. 5





















D. 1



EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 2020-10 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF 
INDIALANTIC, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS AT ALL INDOOR TOWN 
FACILITIES TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR FACE COVERING 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, NON-CODIFICATION, 
AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida 
as a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of COVID-
19; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (“CDC”) issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and  

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC’s social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor DeSantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and  

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and  

Agenda item: D 1 (a)



 
 

 
2 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Indialantic (“the Town”) adopted Local Emergency Order 
No. 2020-01 declaring a local state of emergency and closing the beaches for the Town 
regarding the COVID-19 emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Local Order has been extended several times due to the COVID-
19 emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the Local Order which the Town Council later ratified, the 
Town Council authorized the exercise of its authority and powers regarding the COVID-
19 emergency to be exercised under the direction of the Mayor or the Deputy Mayor in 
the absence of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-
112 as modified by Executive Order No. 20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
No. 20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One 
of the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order No. 
20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-
139, moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order No. 20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in 
part, and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order No. 20-112; and 
 
 WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes.  
This guidance goes on to state that “personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that “COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 
or talks.  These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs.  Studies and evidence on infection control report that these 
droplets usually travel around 6 feet (about “2 arms’ length”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 



 
 

 
3 

 

communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in “pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain”; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A. 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is an 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 in the Town of Indialantic 
has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of Florida; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of COVID-
19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of the 
COVID-19 virus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 7, 2020, the Governor of the State of Florida issued Executive 
Order No. 20-166, which extends until September 5, 2020, the state of emergency 
declared by the Governor pursuant to Executive Order No. 20-52; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 166.041(3)(b) and (4), Florida Statutes, provides that 
emergency ordinances may be adopted by a 2/3rds vote of the Town Council; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council makes a legislative finding that an emergency 
situation exists because of COVID-19, the increase in COVID-19 cases in Florida and 
Brevard County, and the issuance of Executive Order No. 20-166, that an “emergency” 
exists supporting the approval of this Ordinance as an Emergency Ordinance pursuant to 
Section 166.041(3)(b) and (4), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council resolves that it is in the best interest of the residents 
and businesses of the Town of Indialantic, and it is in furtherance of the public health, 
safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Ordinance to require face coverings in indoor 
Town owned and operated facilities as specified herein on an emergency basis in 
accordance with Section 2.09 of the Town Charter. 
 



 
 

 
4 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF INDIALANTIC, FLORIDA: 
  
 Section 1.  Recitals.  Each and all of the recitals (“WHEREAS” clauses) are 
hereby incorporated herein. 
 
 Section 2. Definitions.  
 
   “Face Covering” shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a persons’ nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one’s 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 
 
   “Social Distancing” shall mean keeping space between yourself and 
other people by staying at least 6 feet (or approximately 2 arms’ length) from other people. 
 
 Section 3. Face Coverings Required.  Every Person living, working, or visiting 
the Town of Indialantic shall wear a face covering in every indoor Town owned and 
operated facility.  
 
 Section 4. Exceptions.  The following exceptions to Section 3. Of this 
Ordinance are hereby adopted: 

 
(a)  Persons under the age of 6 years old; and 
(b)  Persons observing social distancing under the CDC guidelines; and 
(c)  Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due to 

an existing health condition; and 
(d)  Persons working in a business or profession who do not have 

contact with other people; and 
(e)  Persons working in a business or profession who maintain social 

distancing from another person; and  
(f)  Persons working in a business or profession where working with a 

face covering would prevent them from performing the duties of the business or 
profession; and 

(g)  Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; and 
(h)  Persons eating or drinking; and  
(i)  Public safety, fire, and other life safety and public health personnel, 

as their personal protection equipment will be governed by their respective agencies; and 
(j)  This requirement shall not apply when a person who is hearing 

impaired and needs to see the mouth of someone wearing a face covering in order to 
communicate. 

 
 Section 5.  Penalties; Civil Citation.  Any person violating the terms of this 
Emergency Ordinance and found in violation may be punished and fined up to $500.00 



 
 

 
5 

 

by either the Police Department or Code Enforcement.  The fine for a first offence shall 
be $100.00; the fine for a second offense shall be $250.00 and the fine for a third or more 
offense shall be $500.00 for each of the third and successive offense(s).  This provision 
is provided as an exception to the penalties set forth in Section 1-9, Town of Indialantic 
Code of Ordinances.  Each day a violation by any person occurs of any provision of this 
Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense, and each act in violation by any person of 
the provisions of this Ordinance shall be considered a separate and distinct offense. 
 
 Section 6. Severability.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold 
or determine that any part of this Ordinance is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder 
of the Ordinance shall not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Council for 
the Town of Indialantic did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional provision.  
It shall further be assumed that the Town Council would have enacted the remainder of 
this Ordinance without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby causing said 
remainder to remain in full force and effect.   
  
 Section 7.  Codification.  This Ordinance shall not be codified. 
 
 Section 8.  Effective Date and Sunset.  This Emergency Ordinance shall 
become effective on July 9, 2020 at 8 a.m., and shall sunset upon repeal of this Ordinance 
by the Town Council, or at 12:01 a.m. on August 13, 2020, whichever event first occurs. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town 
to be affixed at Indialantic, Florida, this 8th day of July, 2020. 
 
 
 
              
      _____________________________________ 
      David Berkman, Mayor 
(Seal) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk 



EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 2020-11 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF 
INDIALANTIC, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING ALL BUSINESSES TO POST THEIR MASK 
POLICY AT THE ENTRY OF THE BUSINESS TO ADVISE 
CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, EMPLOYEES, AND INVITEES 
OF SAME PRIOR TO ENTERING THE BUSINESSES; 
REQUIRING CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, EMPLOYEES AND 
INVITEES OF “ESSENTIAL” BUSINESSES, AS DEFINED 
HEREIN, TO WEAR MASKS; MAKING LEGISLATIVE 
FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND SUPPORTING THE 
WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS AN EFFECTIVE 
MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF COVID-19; 
PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida 
as a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of COVID-
19; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (“CDC”) issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and  

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC’s social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor DeSantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and  

Agenda item: D 1 (b)



 
2 

 

 WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Indialantic (“the Town”) adopted Local Emergency Order 
No. 2020-01 declaring a local state of emergency and closing the beaches for the Town 
regarding the COVID-19 emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Local Order has been extended several times due to the COVID-
19 emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the Local Order which the Town Council later ratified, the 
Town Council authorized the exercise of its authority and powers regarding the COVID-
19 emergency to be exercised under the direction of the Mayor or the Deputy Mayor in 
the absence of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-
112 as modified by Executive Order No. 20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
No. 20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One 
of the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order No. 
20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order #20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order No. 20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in 
part, and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 
 
 WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes.  
This guidance goes on to state that “personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that “COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 
or talks.  These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 



 
3 

 

inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about “2 arms’ length”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in “pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A. 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is an 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 in the Town of Indialantic 
have been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of Florida; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of COVID-
19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of the 
COVID-19 virus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of Florida has the highest percentage of population in the 
United States 65 years of age and older, as well as the second largest population of that 
demographic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon recent updated census estimates, the demographic of 
residents 65 years of age and older living in the Town of Indialantic is approximately 20%; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, according to the CDC, the vast majority of persons that test positive 
for the COVID-19 virus that are hospitalized or die from the virus are persons over the 
age of 65 years and/or have underlying health conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, according the CDC, overall, 31% of cases, 45% of hospitalizations, 
53% of ICU admissions, and 80% of deaths associated with COVID-19 were among 
adults aged 65 years of age and older with the highest percentage of severe outcomes 
among persons aged 85 years of age and older; and 
 



 
4 

 

 WHEREAS, on July 7, 2020, the Governor of the State of Florida issued Executive 
Order No. 20-166, which extends until September 5, 2020, the state of emergency 
declared by the Governor pursuant to Executive Order No. 20-52; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 166.041(3)(b) and (4), Florida Statutes, provides that 
emergency ordinances may be adopted by a 2/3rds vote of the Town Council; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council makes a legislative finding that an emergency 
situation exists because of COVID-19, the increase in COVID-19 cases in Florida and 
Brevard County, and the issuance of Executive Order No. 20-166, that an “emergency” 
exists supporting the approval of this Ordinance as an Emergency Ordinance pursuant to 
Section 166.041(3)(b) and (4), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
residents of the Town of Indialantic and it is the furtherance of the public health, safety, 
and welfare, to formally adopt this Ordinance to require all businesses to post their face 
covering policy to alert older persons and persons with underlying conditions of whether 
or not all other persons within a business will have face coverings as a way to make 
informed decisions to enter a business; as specified herein on an emergency basis in 
accordance with Section 2.09 of the Town Charter and Section 166.041(3)(b) and (4), 
Florida Statutes, and to require businesses that are deemed “essential” by this Ordinance 
to the needs of all residents to require face coverings for all patrons. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF INDIALANTIC, FLORIDA: 
  
 Section 1.  Recitals.  Each and all of the recitals (“WHEREAS” clauses) are 
hereby incorporated herein. 
 
 Section 2. Definitions.  As used in this Ordinance, the following term shall be 
defined as follows:  “Face Covering” shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a persons’ nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one’s 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 
 
 Section 3. Businesses Required to Post Face Coverings Policy on their 
Doorway. 
 

(a)  Every business in the Town of Indialantic with a storefront or business 
front that allows customers or invitees in their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods or services, is required to post in writing their Policy requirements for Face 
Coverings for their customers, patrons and employees at the entrance to the storefront or 
business front.  The Policy shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly visible and 
conspicuous manner for all customers or other invitees to read prior to entering the 
business.  The business shall regularly maintain the posted Policy so that it remains 
clear, visible, and easily readable. 



 
5 

 

 
(b)  All businesses are encouraged to prohibit entry of any person who is 

not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed persons: 
 

1.  Persons under the age of 6 years old; and 
2.  Persons observing social distancing under the CDC guidelines; 

and 
3.  Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due 

to an existing health condition; and 
4.  Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; and 
5.  Persons while eating or drinking; and  
6.  When a person who is hearing impaired and needs to see the 

mouth of someone wearing a face covering in order to communicate. 
 

 Section 4. “Essential” businesses required to mandate Face Coverings for all 
customers, invitee, and employees. 
 

(a)  Every business in the Town of Indialantic with a storefront or business 
front that allows customers or invitees in their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods or services that are deemed to be “essential” by this Ordinance shall require all 
customers, patrons, invitees, and employees, to utilize Face Coverings at all times while 
in the store or business.  This requirement shall apply to the following businesses or 
stores which are deemed “essential” pursuant to this Ordinance:  gas stations (if any); 
convenience stores, grocery stores, and drug stores.  

 
(b)  Every business deemed essential by this Ordinance in the Town of 

Indialantic with a storefront or business front that allows customers or invitees in their 
building for the purpose of purchasing goods or services, is required to post in writing the 
Policy requirements set forth in this Ordinance for Face Coverings for their customers, 
patrons, invitees, and employees at the entrance to the storefront or business front.  The 
Policy shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly visible and conspicuous manner 
for all customers, patrons, employees, or other invitees, to read prior to entering the 
business.  The business shall regularly maintain the posted Policy so that it remains 
clear, visible, and easily readable. 

 
(c)  Essential businesses are required to immediately prohibit entry of any 

person who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed persons: 
 

1.  Persons under the age of 6 years old; and 
2.  Persons observing social distancing under the CDC 

guidelines; and 
3.  Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment 

due to an existing health condition; and 
4.  Persons while eating or drinking; and  



 
6 

 

5.  When a person who is hearing impaired and needs to see 
the mouth of someone wearing a face covering in order to communicate. 

 
 Section 5.  Penalties.  Civil Citation.  Any person violating the terms of this 
Emergency Ordinance and found in violation may be punished and fined up to $500.00 
by either the Police Department or Code Enforcement. The fine for a first offence shall be 
$100.00; the fine for a second offense shall be $250.00 and the fine for a third or more 
offense shall be $500.00 for each of the third and successive offense(s).  This provision 
is provided as an exception to the penalties set forth in Section 1-9, Town of Indialantic 
Code of Ordinances.  Each day a violation by any person occurs of any provision of this 
Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense, and each act in violation by any person of 
the provisions of this Ordinance shall be considered a separate and distinct offense. 
 
 Section 6. Severability.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold 
or determine that any part of this Ordinance is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder 
of the Ordinance shall not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Council for 
the Town of Indialantic did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional provision.  
It shall further be assumed that the Town Council would have enacted the remainder of 
this Ordinance without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby causing said 
remainder to remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 7.  Codification.  This Ordinance shall not be codified. 
  
 Section 8.  Effective Date and Sunset.  This Emergency Ordinance shall 
become effective on July 9, 2020 at 8 a.m., and shall sunset upon repeal of this Ordinance 
by the Town Council, or at 12:01 a.m. on August 13, 2020, whichever event first occurs. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of 
the Town to be affixed at Indialantic, Florida, this 8th day of July, 2020. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      David Berkman, Mayor 
(Seal) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk 



D. 2



E. 1



Agenda item E. 1



Agenda item E. 1





Agenda item E. 1







































































E. 2



Agenda item F. 1




























	Council Agenda 7-8-2020 Zoom.pdf
	Agenda
	Town of Indialantic
	Regular Meeting of the Town Council
	Wednesday, July 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
	Council Chambers, 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903
	NOTICE: This meeting will not be held at Town Hall. This meeting will be held utilizing Communications Media Technology in accordance with Governor DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09. Those wishing to attend the meet...
	A. Call to Order:
	B. Consent Agenda:
	C. Ordinances and Public Hearings:
	D. Unfinished Business:
	E. New Business:
	F. Administrative Reports:
	G. Council Reports:
	H. Adjourn:





